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The Capital Regional District strives to be a place where inclusion is paramount and all people are 

treated with dignity.  We pledge to make our meetings a place where all feel welcome and respected.

1.  TERRITORIAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

2.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

3.  ADOPTION OF MINUTES

Minutes of the April 10, 2024 Capital Regional Hospital District Board 

Meeting

24-4443.1.

Recommendation: That the minutes of the Capital Regional Hospital District Board meeting of April 10, 

2024 be adopted as circulated.

Minutes - April 10, 2024Attachments:

4.  REPORT OF THE CHAIR

5.  PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS

The public are welcome to attend CRD Board meetings in-person.

Delegations will have the option to participate electronically. Please complete the online 

application at www.crd.bc.ca/address no later than 4:30 pm two days before the 

meeting and staff will respond with details.

Alternatively, you may email your comments on an agenda item to the CRD Board at 

crdboard@crd.bc.ca.

6.  CONSENT AGENDA
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May 8, 2024Capital Regional Hospital District 

Board

Notice of Meeting and Meeting 

Agenda

Capital Regional Hospital District 2023 Audit Findings Report and 

Audited Financial Statements

24-2796.1.

Recommendation: The Hospitals and Housing Committee recommends to the Capital Regional Hospital 

District Board:

That the Capital Regional Hospital District 2023 Audited Financial Statements be 

approved.

(NWA)

Staff Report: CRHD 2023 Audit Findings Report and Financial Statements

Appendix A: Financial Statements

Appendix B: Audit Findings Report

Appendix C: Other Financial Statement Analysis

Appendix D: Financial Performance Indicators

Attachments:

7.  ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

8.  REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

9.  BYLAWS

10.  NOTICE(S) OF MOTION

11.  NEW BUSINESS

12.  ADJOURNMENT

Votinq Key:

NWA - Non-weighted vote of all Directors

NWP - Non-weighted vote of participants (as listed)

WA - Weighted vote of all Directors

WP - Weighted vote of participants (as listed)
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625 Fisgard St., 

Victoria, BC  V8W 1R7Capital Regional District

Meeting Minutes

Capital Regional Hospital District Board

1:05 PM 6th Floor Boardroom

625 Fisgard Street

Victoria, BC

Wednesday, April 10, 2024

PRESENT

DIRECTORS: K. Murdoch (Chair), C. McNeil-Smith (Acting Chair), P. Brent, S. Brice, J. Brownoff, 

J. Caradonna, C. Coleman, Z. de Vries, B. Desjardins, S. Goodmanson, G. Holman, P. Jones, S. Kim 

(for M. Alto), D. Kobayashi (EP), M. Little, D. Murdock, C. Plant, L. Szpak, M. Tait, D. Thompson, 

S. Tobias (EP),  A. Wickheim, K. Williams, R. Windsor

STAFF: T. Robbins, Chief Administrative Officer; N. Chan, Chief Financial Officer; A. Fraser, General 

Manager, Integrated Water Services; L. Hutcheson, Acting General Manager, Parks and Environmental 

Services; K. Lorette, General Manager, Planning and Protective Services; K. Morley, General Manager, 

Corporate Services; M. Barnes, Senior Manager, Health and Capital Planning Strategies; D. Elliott, 

Senior Manager, Regional Housing; M. Lagoa, Deputy Corporate Officer; S. Orr, Senior Committee 

Clerk (Recorder)

EP - Electronic Participation

Regrets: Director M. Alto

The meeting was called to order at 1:09 pm.

1.  TERRITORIAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

A Territorial Acknowledgement was provided in the preceding meeting.

2.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

MOVED by Director McNeil-Smith, SECONDED by Director Szpak,

That the agenda for the April 10, 2024 Session of the Capital Regional Hospital 

District Board be approved.

CARRIED

3.  ADOPTION OF MINUTES

3.1. 24-363 Minutes of the March 13, 2024 Capital Regional Hospital District Board 

Meeting

MOVED by Director McNeil-Smith, SECONDED by Director Szpak,  

That the minutes of the Capital Regional Hospital District Board meeting of March 

13, 2024 be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED
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4.  REPORT OF THE CHAIR

There were no Chair’s remarks.

5.  PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS

There were no presentations or delegations.  

6.  CONSENT AGENDA

There were no consent agenda items.

7.  ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

There were no administration reports.

8.  REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

8.1. 24-336 2024 Minor Capital Projects and Equipment - Approval of Capital Bylaw

K. Lorette spoke to Item 8.1.

Discussion ensued regarding equipment funding and requirements for electric 

vehicles.

MOVED by Director McNeil-Smith, SECONDED by Director Desjardins,  

1. That the recommended 2024 Minor Capital Projects totalling $3,750,000 be 

approved and expensed from the 2024 requisition;

2. That the recommended 2024 equipment grants of $30,000 to Mount St. Mary 

Hospital and $2,925,000 to Island Health be approved and expensed from the 

2024 requisition.

CARRIED

MOVED by Director McNeil-Smith, SECONDED by Director Brice,

3. That Bylaw No. 426, “Capital Regional Hospital District Bylaw No. 195, 2024”, 

be introduced and read a first, second and third time.

CARRIED

MOVED by Director McNeil-Smith, SECONDED by Director Brice,

4. That Bylaw No. 426 be adopted.

CARRIED

9.  BYLAWS

There were no bylaws for consideration.   

10.  NOTICE(S) OF MOTION

There were no notice(s) of motion.
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April 10, 2024Capital Regional Hospital District 

Board

Meeting Minutes

11.  NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business.

12.  ADJOURNMENT

MOVED by Director McNeil-Smith, SECONDED by Director Brice,

That the April 10, 2024 Capital Regional Hospital District Board meeting be 

adjourned at 1:14 pm.

CARRIED

___________________________________

CHAIR

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

___________________________________

CORPORATE OFFICER
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24-279 

REPORT TO THE HOSPITALS AND HOUSING COMMITTEE 
MEETING OF WEDNESDAY, MAY 01, 2024 

 

 
SUBJECT Capital Regional Hospital District 2023 Audit Findings Report and Audited 

Financial Statements 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY 
 
This report summarizes the Capital Regional Hospital District (CRHD) 2023 Audit Findings Report 
and requests approval of the Audited Financial Statements. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The CRHD was established in 1967 by the provincial government (Hospital District Act) to provide 
the local share of capital funding for healthcare infrastructure in the capital region. The CRHD 
shares the same boundaries, board of directors and administrative staff as the Capital Regional 
District (CRD). 
 
Section 17 of the Hospital District Act and Section 814 of the Local Government Act require that 
audited financial statements be prepared each year. The 2023 Financial Statements have been 
prepared by management in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards 
(PSAS), as required by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB). 
 
Partnering with Island Health and community stakeholder agencies, the CRHD supports a healthy 
region by investing in strategic priorities in healthcare. These include new construction, upgrades, 
renewals and expansion of health facilities and medical equipment. More recently, CRHD also 
contributes by developing land and health facilities for Island Health to occupy for health authority 
purposes. Financial activities include strategies and actions to raise the local cost share of funding 
for capital projects directed by Island Health and 100% for CRHD directed development and 
construction initiatives. 
 
Under PSAB regulations, the CRHD is required to present four statements with accompanying 
notes: 

1. Statement of Financial Position 
2. Statement of Operations 
3. Statement of Change in Net Debt 
4. Statement of Cash Flows 
 
The CRHD 2023 Audited Financial Statements are attached as Appendix A and include Schedule 
A which provides a listing of contributions paid to district hospitals. 
 
The Audit Findings Report from KPMG (Appendix B) summarizes the responsibilities of the audit 
firm, scope of investigations and audit results. The report confirms there have been no significant 
changes in the audit approach from the Audit Planning Report previously presented to the Board 
on January 10, 2024. The audit findings confirm the financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of CRHD as of December 31, 2023. 
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ALTERNATIVES 
 
Alternative 1 
That the Hospitals and Housing Committee recommends to the Capital Regional Hospital District 
Board:  
That the Capital Regional Hospital District 2023 Audited Financial Statements be approved. 
 
Alternative 2 
That the Capital Regional Hospital District 2023 Audited Financial Statements be referred back 
to staff for additional information. 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Financial Implications 
 
NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
 
Asset Retirement Obligations 
 
As identified on page 7 of the Audit Findings Report (Appendix B), new accounting standard PS 
3280 Asset Retirement Obligations (AROs) came into effect for the year ended December 31, 
2023. This standard requires the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of any 
legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible capital assets in a future period. PS 
3280 was implemented in 2023 through the recognition of an ARO on December 31, 2023, and 
retroactive application through the restatement of the 2022 comparative figures. 
 
HIGHLIGHTS 
 
1. Statement of Financial Position 
 
The Statement of Financial Position presents the financial position of an entity at a given date. It 
is comprised of three main components: financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial 
assets. As of December 31, 2023, the CRHD is in a net debt financial position of $(64.9) million 
with an accumulated surplus of $39.6 million. 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets as of December 31, 2023, totalled $38.4 million, an increase of $7.1 million from 
2022. Table 1 summarizes financial assets as of December 31, 2023 and provides the change 
year over year. 
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Table 1 – Change in Financial Assets Year over Year 

Statement of Financial 
Position ($ millions) 

2023 2022 $ Change % Change 

Financial Assets     

Cash and Cash Equivalents 10.2 18.6 (8.4) (45%) 

Investments 24.0 9.0 15.0 167% 

Due from CRD 0.1 0.1 - - 

Other Receivables 1.3 0.3 1.0 333% 

Restricted Cash – MFA DRF* 2.8 3.3 (0.5) (15%) 

Total Financial Assets $38.4 $31.3 $7.1 23% 
*Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) Debt Reserve Fund (DRF) 

 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank deposits and short-term highly liquid 
investments. Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $(8.4) million primarily due to the transfer 
of cash to investments in the year. Investments increased by $15.0 million due to an investment 
strategy which moved funds on hand into longer-term holdings. Further details on changes are 
included in Section 4 (Statement of Cash Flows) of Appendix C. 
 
Other receivables increased by $1.0 million due to accrued interest receivable on investment 
holdings and the recovery of insurance costs from Island Health for The Summit long-term care 
home. Restricted cash decreased by $(0.5) million due to debt maturities exceeding new debt 
issuances in the year, therefore reducing the MFA DRF. 
 
Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities as of December 31, 2023, totalled $103.3 million, a decrease of $(14.8) million 
from 2022. Table 2 summarizes financial liabilities as of December 31, 2023, and provides the 
change year over year. 

Table 2 – Change in Financial Liabilities Year over Year 

Statement of Financial 
Position ($ millions) 

2023 
2022 

Restated 
$ Change % Change 

Financial Liabilities     

Accounts Payable and other  3.8 3.2 0.6 19% 

Deferred Revenue 0.4 0.4 - - 

Long-Term Debt 98.5 114.0 (15.5) (14%) 

Asset Retirement Obligation 0.6 0.5 0.1 20% 

Total Financial Liabilities $103.3 $118.1 ($14.8) (13%) 

 
Accounts payable increased by $0.6 million primarily due to the timing of claims made by Island 
Health on active major capital projects. Long-term debt decreased by $(15.5) million due to debt 
maturities exceeding new debt borrowings in 2023. 
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Non-Financial Assets 
 
Non-financial assets as of December 31, 2023, totalled $104.5 million, a decrease of $(2.9) million 
from 2022. As shown in Table 3, non-financial assets consist solely of tangible capital assets. 
 
Table 3 – Change in Non-Financial Assets Year over Year 

Statement of Financial 
Position ($ millions)  

2023 
2022 

Restated 
$ Change % Change 

Non-Financial Assets     

Tangible Capital Assets $104.5 $107.4 ($2.9) (3%) 

 
Tangible capital assets decreased $(2.9) million due to $(3.2) million in amortization expense 
partially offset by $0.3 million in renovations and structural modifications at The Summit. 

Additional detail is presented in Note 6 of the 2023 Financial Statements. 

2. Statement of Operations 
 
The Statement of Operations reports the annual results of the entity’s financial activities, 
presenting revenues less expenses and net surplus/(deficit). 
 
Revenue 
 
Revenue as of December 31, 2023, totalled $38.6 million, an increase of $0.3 million from 2022. 
Table 4 summarizes revenue as of December 31, 2023, and provides the change year over year. 

Table 4 – Change in Revenue Year over Year 

Statement of Operations 
($ millions)  

2023 2022 $ Change % Change 

Requisition 26.5 26.5 - - 

Payments in Lieu of Taxes 0.7 0.8 (0.1) (13%) 

Lease and other Property 
Revenue 

4.9 4.4 0.5 11% 

Interest Income 1.8 0.8 1.0 125% 

DRF 0.2 0.3 (0.1) (33%) 

Actuarial Adjustment of Long-
Term Debt 

4.5 5.5 (1.0) (18%) 

Total Revenue $38.6 $38.3 $0.3 1% 

 
Interest income increased by $1.0 million. This was due to the CRHD carrying larger reserve 
balances throughout the year, combined with favourable interest rates earned on reserve funds 
plus working capital held in guaranteed investment certificates (GICs) and high interest savings 
accounts. Lease and other property revenue increased by $0.5 million due to the recovery of 
insurance costs at The Summit from Island Health. 
 
These increases were partially offset by a decrease in the actuarial adjustment of long-term debt 
of $(1.0) million and a decrease in surplus earned on DRF of $(0.1) million. Both decreases were 
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due to a decrease in the debt portfolio held by the CRHD as debt maturities exceeded new debt 
borrowings in 2023. Payments in lieu of taxes also decreased by $(0.1) million in 2023. 
 
Expenses 
 
Expenses as of December 31, 2023, totalled $19.6 million, an increase of $1.6 million from 2022. 
Table 5 summarizes revenue as of December 31, 2023, and provides the change year over year. 
 
Table 5 – Change in Expenses Year over Year 

Statement of Operations 
($ millions)  

2023 
2022 

Restated 
$ Change % Change 

Contributions to Island Health 8.8 6.6 2.2 33% 

Interest on Debt 6.3 6.9 (0.6) (9%) 

Amortization and Accretion 3.1 3.1 - - 

Operating Expenses 1.4 1.4 - - 

Total Expenses $19.6 $18.0 $1.6 9% 

 
Contributions to Island Health increased by $2.2 million. These contributions vary year over year 
depending on the timing of claims submitted by Island Health for capital initiatives. Of the $8.8 
million paid in 2023, $6.5 million was contributed to minor capital projects and capital equipment 
grants in the region and $2.3 million to major capital projects. Notable projects in 2023 include 
the redevelopment of Lady Minto Hospital Emergency Department, Victoria General Hospital’s 
High Acuity Unit, and the new long-term care facility at Royal Bay. 
 
The decrease in interest on debt of $(0.6) million is due to lower balances payable because of 
debt maturities outpacing new debt issuances in 2023. 
 
2023 Annual Surplus 

The accumulated surplus represents the sum of annual surpluses and deficits to date for the 
CRHD. The accumulated surplus or net book value of equity for the CRHD is $39.6 million, 
indicating the organization has assets (financial and non-financial) of greater value than what it 
owes (financial liabilities). 
 
The annual surplus is the excess of revenues over expenses for the current year. In 2023, 
operations resulted in an annual surplus of $19.1 million, a decrease of $(1.2) million over the 
prior year. The decrease in surplus is due to an increase in contributions paid to Island Health for 
capital initiatives. 
 
Surplus funds are used to pay for capital and other commitments through reserve funds for future 
use and for repayment of current outstanding debt principal. 
 
3. Other Financial Statement Analysis 
 
Appendix C contains an analysis of the remaining two statements (Change in Net Debt and Cash 
Flow) and Schedule A (Grants to District Hospitals). 
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4. Financial Indicators 
 
Financial indicators are metrics used to quantify current conditions in addition to forecasting 
trends. They can be used as a tool to evaluate overall financial condition of the entity. The 
following indicators and indicators included in Appendix D, measure CRHD’s performance and 
financial sustainability. 
 
4.1 Debt Service Ratio – Debt Service Costs as a Percentage of Revenue 

 
The debt service ratio is an indicator of the percentage of revenue committed to the payment 
of interest and principal on temporary and long-term debt. A high percentage indicates greater 
use of revenue for the repayment of debt. As the CRHD’s primary mandate is to secure 
borrowing and provide capital contributions for health facility infrastructure, a high debt 
servicing ratio is expected. CRHD’s debt servicing costs as percentage of revenue as of 
December 31, 2023, is 52% (2022: 54%). 
 
A comparison of the CRHD and hospital districts on Vancouver Island and the southern 
mainland of British Columbia is outlined in Appendix C. 

 
4.2 Current Ratio – Current Assets Versus Current Liabilities 

 
The current ratio is a measure of the liquidity of an organization, meaning the CRHD’s ability 
to meet current obligations using current assets (cash, accounts receivable, short-term 
investments). A high ratio indicates a greater ability to meet both planned and unexpected 
expenditures. The CRHD’s current ratio as of December 31, 2023, is 5.7 to 1 (2022: 7.3 to 1), 
indicating CRHD’s current assets are sufficient to pay current liabilities 5.7 times. 

4.3 Interest Coverage Ratio – Interest Costs as a Percentage of Total Revenues 
 
This ratio is an indicator of the percentage of revenue committed to the payment of interest 
on temporary and long-term debt. A high percentage indicates greater use of revenues for 
servicing interest on outstanding debt. The CRHD’s interest coverage ratio on December 31, 
2023, is 6.1 (2022: 5.6), indicating the CRHD’s revenue is sufficient to repay interest expense 
6.1 times. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
Board approval of the CRHD 2023 Audited Financial Statements is required by the Hospital 
District Act and the Local Government Act. Audited financial statements must be available for the 
Ministry of Health and Municipal Finance Authority. KPMG has completed the annual audit and 
as noted in the Auditor’s Report, it is the auditor’s opinion these Financial Statements present 
fairly the financial position of CRHD at December 31, 2023 and the results of the financial activities 
for the year then ended are in accordance with Canadian PSAS. 
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RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Hospitals and Housing Committee recommends to the Capital Regional Hospital District 
Board: 
That the Capital Regional Hospital District 2023 Audited Financial Statements be approved. 
 

Submitted by: Rianna Lachance, BCom, CPA, CA, Sr. Mgr., Financial Services / Deputy CFO 

Concurrence: Nelson Chan, MBA, FCPA, FCMA, Chief Financial Officer, GM Finance & IT 

Concurrence: Kevin Lorette, P. Eng., MBA, General Manager, Planning & Protective Services 

Concurrence: Ted Robbins, B. Sc., C. Tech., Chief Administrative Officer 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Appendix A: CRHD 2023 Financial Statements 
Appendix B: CRHD Audit Findings Report [for the year ended December 31, 2023 (KPMG)] 
Appendix C: CRHD Other Financial Statement Analysis 
Appendix D: CRHD Financial Performance Indicators 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Chair and Directors of the Capital Regional Hospital District 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of the Capital Regional Hospital District (the District), which comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023 

• the statement of operations for the year then ended 

• the statement of change in net debt for the year then ended 

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

• and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the District as at December 31, 2023, and its results of operations, its change in net debt, and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements” section of our auditor’s report.   

We are independent of the District in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.     

Emphasis of Matter - Comparative Information 
We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements which explains that certain comparative information 
presented for the year ended December 31, 2022 has been restated. Note 2 explains the reason for the 
restatement and also explains the adjustments that were applied to restate certain comparative information. Our 
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.  
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Other Matter - Comparative Information 
As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, we also audited the 
adjustments that were applied to restate certain comparative information presented for the year ended 
December 31, 2022. In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied.  

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the District’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the District or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the District’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control.  
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the District's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the District to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

 

 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
 
Victoria, Canada 
__________________, 2024 
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Capital Regional Hospital District

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Financial Statements contained in this report have been prepared by management in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The integrity and objectivity 
of these statements are management's responsibility. Management is also responsible for all 
the statements and schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where 
appropriate, with the information contained in the financial statements.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal 
controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.  

The Capital Regional Hospital District Board of Directors are responsible for approving the 
financial statements and for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial 
reporting and internal control, and exercises this responsibility through the Hospitals and 
Housing Committee of the Board.

The external auditor, KPMG LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards, and express their opinion on the financial 
statements. Their examination includes a review and evaluation of the District’s system of 
internal control and appropriate tests and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that 
the financial statements are presented fairly. The external auditor had full and free access to 
staff and management. The Independent Auditor’s Report outlines the scope of the 
audit for the year ended December 31, 2023.

On behalf of Capital Regional Hospital District,

Nelson Chan, MBA, FCPA, FCMA 
Chief Financial Officer
May 8, 2024

Management Report

This document uses hidden footer text paragraph style to generate the running footers and the sec-
tion headings in the TOC
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Capital Regional Hospital District	 Statement 1

Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2023

Statements

            $

CCaappiittaall  RReeggiioonnaall  HHoossppiittaall  DDiissttrriicctt SSttaatteemmeenntt  11
SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  FFiinnaanncciiaall  PPoossiittiioonn
FFoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22002233

2023 2022
Restated (Note 2)

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,175,942       $ 18,607,086       
Investments 24,000,000       9,000,000         
Accounts receivable

Due from Capital Regional District 147,180            107,379            
Other 1,307,725         281,085            

Restricted cash - MFA Debt Reserve Fund (Note 3) 2,788,315         3,288,444         
38,419,162       31,283,994       

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 3,875,792         3,265,947         
Deferred revenue 366,515            366,515            
Long-term debt (Note 4) 98,467,559       113,972,340     
Asset retirement obligation (Note 5) 566,344            472,839            

103,276,210     118,077,641     

Net debt (64,857,048)      (86,793,647)      

Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 6) 104,465,568     107,353,519     

Contingent liability (Note 4c & 13)
Commitments (Note 7)
Contractual Obligations (Note 8)
Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) (Note 11) $ 39,608,520       $ 20,559,872       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

   Nelson Chan, MBA, FCPA, FCMA
Chief Financial Officer
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Capital Regional Hospital District	 Statement 2

Statement of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2023

CCaappiittaall  RReeggiioonnaall  HHoossppiittaall  DDiissttrriicctt SSttaatteemmeenntt  22
SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  OOppeerraattiioonnss  
FFoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22002233

Budget 2023 2022
(Note 12) Restated (Note 2)

Revenue
Taxation - Municipalities $ 24,297,119         $ 24,297,119         $ 24,291,188         
Taxation - Electoral Areas 2,060,817           2,060,817           2,068,029           
Taxation - First Nations 104,616              104,616              101,619              
Payments in lieu of taxes 699,157              699,157              834,368              
Lease and other property revenue 4,419,813           4,936,720           4,421,133           
Interest income 100,000              1,782,102           808,282              
Debenture maturity refund 603,000              172,114              258,253              
Actuarial adjustment on long-term debt -                          4,561,920           5,506,241           

32,284,522         38,614,565         38,289,113         

Expenses
Grants to district hospitals (Schedule A) 10,573,603         8,787,670           6,565,342           
Interest on long-term debt 6,161,585           6,138,095           6,856,743           
Interest on short-term debt 51,000                46,498                8,438                  
Amortization -                          3,142,214           3,123,841           
Accretion -                          21,561                20,621                
Operating expenses 2,058,039           1,429,879           1,419,454           

18,844,227         19,565,917         17,994,439         

Annual surplus 13,440,295         19,048,648         20,294,674         

20,559,872         20,559,872         265,198              

$ 34,000,167         $ 39,608,520         $ 20,559,872         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Accumulated surplus, end of year

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year
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Capital Regional Hospital District	 Statement 3

Statement of Change in Net Debt
For the year ended December 31, 2023

CCaappiittaall  RReeggiioonnaall  HHoossppiittaall  DDiissttrriicctt SSttaatteemmeenntt  33
SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  CChhaannggee  iinn  NNeett  DDeebbtt
FFoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22002233

Budget 2023 2022
(Note 12) Restated (Note 2)

Annual surplus $ 13,440,295          $ 19,048,648          $ 20,294,674          

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (10,560,000)         (182,319)              (3,303,702)           
Revaluation of asset retirement obligation -                           (71,944)                -                           
Amortization of tangible capital assets -                           3,142,214            3,123,841            

Change in net debt 2,880,295            21,936,599          20,114,813          

(86,793,647)         (86,793,647)         (106,908,460)       

$ (83,913,352)         $ (64,857,048)         $ (86,793,647)         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Net debt, beginning of year

Net debt, end of year
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Capital Regional Hospital District	 Statement 4

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2023

CCaappiittaall  RReeggiioonnaall  HHoossppiittaall  DDiissttrriicctt SSttaatteemmeenntt  44
SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  CCaasshh  FFlloowwss
FFoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22002233

2023 2022
Restated (Note 2)

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual surplus $ 19,048,648         $ 20,294,674         

Items not involving cash:
Actuarial adjustment on long-term debt (4,561,920)          (5,506,241)          
Amortization 3,142,214           3,123,841           
Accretion 21,561                20,621                

Increase (decrease) in non-cash assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,026,640)          (193,662)             
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 609,844              817,982              
Deferred revenue -                          (486)                    
Due to/(from) Capital Regional District (39,801)               23,422                
Restricted cash 500,129              318,701              

Net change in cash from operating activities 17,694,035         18,898,852         

Capital activities:
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (182,319)             (3,303,702)          

Net change in cash from capital activities (182,319)             (3,303,702)          

Investing activities:
Acquisition of investments (24,000,000)        (9,000,000)          
Proceeds from investments 9,000,000           5,000,000           

Net change in cash from investing  activities (15,000,000)        (4,000,000)          

Financing activities:
Temporary borrowings repaid -                          (1,819,000)          
Additions to long-term debt 2,919,437           5,060,362           
Repayment of long-term debt (13,862,297)        (13,900,587)        

Net change in cash from financing activities (10,942,860)        (10,659,225)        

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (8,431,144)          935,925              

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 18,607,086         17,671,161         

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 10,175,942         $ 18,607,086         

Cash paid for interest $ 6,184,593           $ 6,832,708           
Cash received for interest 1,782,102           808,282              

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Capital Regional Hospital District	

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes

CCaappiittaall  RReeggiioonnaall  HHoossppiittaall  DDiissttrriicctt  
 

NNootteess  ttoo  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  
FFoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22002233  
 
GENERAL   
 
The Capital Regional Hospital District (the “Hospital District”) is incorporated under letters patent issued October 17, 
1967.  The Hospital District provides Capital Region hospitals with funding for capital project construction and the 
purchase of moveable equipment. 
 
 
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

The financial statements of the Hospital District are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered 
Professional Accountants of Canada.  Significant accounting policies adopted by the Hospital District are as 
follows:   

 
a) Basis of Accounting 
 The Hospital District follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses.  Revenues are 

normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable.  Expenses are recognized as they 
are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services and/or the creation of a legal 
obligation to pay. 

 
b) Taxation 

Each Municipality, Electoral Area and First Nation within the Regional District is requisitioned for their portion 
of the Hospital District service.  These funds are then levied by the Municipalities, First Nations and the 
Province (for Electoral Areas) to individual taxpayers and remitted to the Hospital District by August 1 of each 
year. 

 
c) Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents include short-term highly liquid investments with a term to maturity of less than 90 days at 
acquisition. 
 

d) Asset Retirement Obligations 
An asset retirement obligation (ARO) is a legal obligation to incur costs to retire a tangible capital asset in a 
future period. AROs are measured at the present value of expected future cash flows including an estimate 
for inflation. Future cash flows are based on the best information available at the financial reporting date. 
Accretion expense is recorded annually to reflect the cost associated with an increase in the present value 
of the ARO over time. The carrying amount of the liability is reassessed annually and updated as new 
information becomes available. Changes in estimates are recorded prospectively and the liability is 
derecognized when retirement activities are completed. 
 
The asset retirement cost at initial recognition is capitalized along with the related tangible capital asset and 
amortized in accordance with the Hospital District’s tangible capital asset policy Note 1 e). 
 

e) Tangible Capital Assets 
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts directly attributable to acquisition, 
construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital 
assets, excluding land, are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
 
Asset Useful Life 
Building and building fixtures 10 to 50 Years 
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

  NNootteess  ttoo  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  ccoonnttiinnuueedd  
 

 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Amortization is charged annually, in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.  Assets under 
construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use. 
 

i. Contributions of tangible capital assets 
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt 
and also are recorded as revenue. 
  

ii. Works of art and cultural and historic assets 
Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these financial statements. 
 

iii. Interest capitalization 
The Hospital District does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction 
of a tangible capital asset. 
 

iv. Impairment 
Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to 
the Hospital District’s ability to produce goods and services or when the value of the future economic 
benefits associated with the asset is less than the book value of the asset. 
 

f) Long-Term Debt 
Long-term debt is recorded net of repayments and actuarial adjustments. 

 
g) Debenture Issue Cost 

Debenture issue costs are recorded as an expense in operations as incurred. 
 

h) Section 20(3) Reserve 
As permitted by section 20(3) of the Hospital District Act, funds are raised for the future purchase of land, 
equipment, minor renovations to hospitals, and related studies.  The unspent balance of the reserve is a 
component of the Hospital District Accumulated Surplus. 
 

i) Grants to District Hospitals 
Government transfers including grants to district hospitals are recognized as an expense in the period the 
transfer is authorized and all eligibility criteria have been met by the recipient. 

 
j) Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments are classified into two categories; fair value or cost.  
 

i. Fair value category:  portfolio investments quoted in an active market are reflected at fair value as 
at the reporting date.  Sales and purchases of investments are recorded on the trade date.  
Transaction costs related to the acquisition of investments are recorded as an expense. 
 

ii. Cost category:  portfolio investments not quoted in an active market, financial assets and liabilities 
are recorded at cost or amortized cost.  Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of 
Operations when the financial asset is derecognized due to disposal or impairment.  Sales and 
purchases of investments are recorded on the trade date.  Transaction costs related to the 
acquisition of financial assets are included in the cost of the related instrument. 

 
 Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis.   
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

  NNootteess  ttoo  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  ccoonnttiinnuueedd  
 

 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

k) Use Of Estimates 
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.  Actual results could differ from these 
estimates. 

 
 
2. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD 

 
On January 1, 2023, the Hospital District adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3280 Asset Retirement 
Obligations. The new accounting standard addresses the reporting of legal obligations associated with the 
retirement of certain tangible capital assets. The standard was adopted on a modified retroactive basis and prior 
year balances have been restated to conform to new reporting requirements. The accounting policy is disclosed 
in Note 1 d) and ARO balances disclosed in Note 5. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the new standard, the Corporation reflected the following adjustments for 
the year ended December 31, 2022: 

 
 2022 

Previously 
Stated 

Adjustment 2022 
Restated 

Statement of Financial Position    
Financial liabilities    

Asset retirement obligations $            -         $        472,839 $        472,839 
Non-financial assets    

Tangible capital assets   107,097,097         256,422 107,353,519 
Accumulated Surplus 20,776,289 (216,417) 20,559,872 

Statement of Operations    
Expenses    

Amortization 3,110,364 13,477 3,123,841 
Accretion -     20,621 20,621 

Annual Surplus    
Annual surplus 20,328,772 (34,098) 20,294,674 
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 447,517 (182,319) 265,198 
Accumulated surplus, end of year 20,776,289 (216,417) 20,559,872 

Statement of Change in Net Debt    
Annual surplus 20,328,772 (34,098) 20,294,674 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,110,364 13,477 3,123,841 
Net debt, beginning of year (106,456,242) (452,218) (106,908,460) 
Net debt, end of year (86,320,808) (472,839) (86,793,647) 

Statement of Cash Flows    
Annual surplus 20,328,772 (34,098) 20,294,674 
Amortization 3,110,364 13,477 3,123,841 
Accretion -  20,621 20,621 

Tangible Capital Assets (Note 6)    
Cost – Buildings 79,818,906 348,741 80,167,647 
Accumulated amortization – Buildings 9,271,950 92,319 9,364,269 
Net book value – Buildings 70,546,956 256,422 70,803,378 

Accumulated Surplus (Note 11)    
Other (4,773,808) (216,417) (4,990,225) 
Accumulated Surplus 20,776,289 (216,417) 20,559,872 



Notes  |  13

Notes to Financial Statements continued

  NNootteess  ttoo  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  ccoonnttiinnuueedd  
 

 

 
 

3. RESTRICTED CASH – MFA DEBT RESERVE FUND 
 

The Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia (MFA) is required to establish a Debt Reserve Fund into 
which each borrower who shares in the proceeds of a debt issue is required to pay certain amounts set out in 
the debt agreements. Interest earned on these funds (less administrative expenses) becomes an obligation of 
the MFA to the borrower.  If at any time insufficient funds are provided by the borrowers, the MFA will then use 
these funds to meet payments on its obligations.  Should this occur, the borrowers may be called upon to restore 
the fund. The balance of the Debt Reserve Fund cash deposits at December 31, 2023 is $2,788,315 (2022: 
$3,288,444) 
 

 
4. LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

a) Debt 
 

Long-term debt represents gross debt borrowings of $214,472,641 (2022: $251,214,060) net of repayments 
and actuarial adjustments of $116,005,082 (2022: $137,241,720).  

 
The loan agreements with the MFA provide that, if at any time the scheduled payments provided for in the 
agreements for the Hospital District and other authorities are not sufficient to meet the MFA's obligation in 
respect to such borrowings, the resulting deficiency becomes a liability of the Hospital District and other 
members of the MFA. 

 
The following principal payments are payable over the next five years and thereafter: 

 
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter 

 $ 12,233,749 $ 9,201,093 $ 7,577,569 $ 6,393,081 $ 4,790,815 $52,326,103 
 

 
 

b) Interest Rates of Long-Term Debt Borrowings Issued in the Year 
 

     2023   2022 
3.90% to 4.97% 3.07% to 3.82% 

 The long-term debt bears interest at rates ranging from 0.91% to 4.97%. The weighted average interest rate 
at December 31, 2023 is 2.73% (2022: 2.69%). 

 
c) Demand Notes – Contingent Liability 

 
 The MFA holds demand notes related to the Hospital District's debenture debt in the amount of $6,912,749 

(2022: $8,311,279). The demand notes are not recorded as they only become payable should debt be in 
default or if the MFA requires the funds to meet debt obligations. 
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

  NNootteess  ttoo  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  ccoonnttiinnuueedd  
 

 

5. ASSET RETIRMENT OBLIGATION 

 
The Hospital District owns a building that contains hazardous materials including asbestos and lead. The Hospital 
District is legally obligated to remove these materials in a prescribed manner when they are disturbed. These 
costs are expected to be incurred in 18 years as the building is demolished or renovated. The retirement costs 
are estimated to include all costs directly attributable to the abatement of the hazardous materials, including 
overhead costs. 
 
The Hospital District uses the Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) long-term borrowing rate as the discount rate. 
The 10-year average B.C. consumer price index is used to estimate inflation and aligns with the Bank of Canada’s 
target inflation range of 1.00% to 3.00%. 
 

 2022  
Restated 
(Note 2) 

ARO 
Additions 

ARO 
Settlements 

Revisions to 
Estimate 

Accretion 
Expense 

2023 

Hazardous 
materials $     472,839 - - 71,944 21,561 566,344 

 
 

All estimated cash flows have been discounted to present value. Discount and inflation rates in the future are 
estimates and subject to change. These changes can impact ARO values significantly when being applied over 
an extended duration. 

 
 
  2023 2022 
Discount rate 4.17% 4.56% 
Inflation rate 2.54% 2.15% 
Settlement timing 18 years 19 years 
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Notes to Financial Statements continued
  

  
  

NNoo
ttee

ss  
ttoo

  FF
iinn

aann
cciiaa

ll  SS
ttaa

ttee
mm

eenn
ttss

  cc
oonn

ttiinn
uuee

dd  
   6.

 
TA

N
G

IB
LE

 C
A

PI
TA

L 
A

SS
ET

S 
– 

R
es

ta
te

d 
(N

ot
e 

2)
 

 
    

 
C

os
t 

A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 
B

al
an

ce
 a

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
2 

(R
es

ta
te

d)
 

A
dd

iti
on

s 
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

 
B

al
an

ce
 a

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 

20
23

 

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 
20

22
 

(R
es

ta
te

d)
 

A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e 

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

3 

 
N

et
 B

oo
k 

Va
lu

e 
at

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
3 

W
or

k 
in

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

$ 
- 

-  
- 

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
   

   
   

   
- 

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

   
   

   
   

 - 
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
- 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
nd

 
 

36
,5

50
,1

41
 

- 
- 

 
36

,5
50

,1
41

 
- 

- 
- 

 
36

,5
50

,1
41

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 

 
80

,1
67

,6
47

 
25

4,
26

3 
- 

 
80

,4
21

,9
10

 
   

9,
36

4,
26

9 
3,

14
2,

21
4 

12
,5

06
,4

83
 

 
67

,9
15

,4
27

 
 

 $ 
11

6,
71

7,
78

8 
25

4,
26

3 
- 

 $ 
11

6,
97

2,
05

1 
   

9,
36

4,
26

9 
3,

14
2,

21
4 

12
,5

06
,4

83
 

 $ 
10

4,
46

5,
56

8 
 

  
  

 
C

os
t 

A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 
B

al
an

ce
 a

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
1 

(R
es

ta
te

d)
 

A
dd

iti
on

s 
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

 
B

al
an

ce
 a

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 

20
22

 
(R

es
ta

te
d)

 

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 
20

21
 

(R
es

ta
te

d)
 

A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e 

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

2 
(R

es
ta

te
d)

 

 
N

et
 B

oo
k 

Va
lu

e 
at

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
2 

(R
es

ta
te

d)
 

W
or

k 
in

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

$ 
1,

98
5,

69
1 

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
(1

,9
85

,6
91

) 
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

   
   

   
   

- 
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
   

   
   

   
 - 

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

- 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
nd

 
 

31
,6

42
,3

75
 

2,
92

2,
07

5 
1,

98
5,

69
1 

 
36

,5
50

,1
41

 
- 

- 
- 

 
36

,5
50

,1
41

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 

 
79

,7
86

,0
20

 
38

1,
62

7 
- 

 
80

,1
67

,6
47

 
   

6,
24

0,
42

8 
3,

12
3,

84
1 

9,
36

4,
26

9 
 

70
,8

03
,3

78
 

 
 $ 

11
3,

41
4,

08
6 

3,
30

3,
70

2 
- 

 $ 
11

6,
71

7,
78

8 
   

6,
24

0,
42

8 
3,

12
3,

84
1 

9,
36

4,
26

9 
 $ 

10
7,

35
3,

51
9 

 
a)

   T
he

 H
ei

gh
ts

 L
on

g-
Te

rm
 C

ar
e 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Si
te

 
 

In
 2

01
2,

 th
e 

H
os

pi
ta

l D
is

tri
ct

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
a 

27
-y

ea
r l

an
d 

le
as

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Ba

pt
is

t H
ou

si
ng

 M
ou

nt
 V

ie
w

 H
ei

gh
ts

 C
ar

e 
So

ci
et

y 
fo

r t
he

 s
ite

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
H

os
pi

ta
l D

is
tri

ct
 a

t 3
81

4 
C

ar
ey

 R
oa

d.
  T

he
 la

nd
 h

as
 a

 h
is

to
ric

al
 c

os
t o

f $
1,

91
3,

64
0.

   



16  |  Notes

Notes to Financial Statements continued
  

NNoo
ttee

ss  
ttoo

  FF
iinn

aann
cciiaa

ll  SS
ttaa

ttee
mm

eenn
ttss

  cc
oonn

ttiinn
uuee

dd  
 

 

7.
 

C
O

M
M

IT
M

EN
TS

 
 

a)
  T

he
 H

os
pi

ta
l D

is
tr

ic
t h

as
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
e 

ca
pi

ta
l b

yl
aw

s:
 

 

B
yl

aw
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
t 

(Is
la

nd
 H

ea
lth

) 

 
H

os
pi

ta
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
Sh

ar
e 

 
Fu

nd
ed

 to
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 
20

22
 

 
Fu

nd
ed

 in
 

C
ur

re
nt

 
Ye

ar
 

(S
ch

ed
ul

e 
A

) 

 
Fu

nd
ed

 to
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

3 

 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

C
om

m
itm

en
t 

 
Pl

an
ne

d 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

   
  

20
24

 - 
20

28
 

Se
c 

20
(3

) 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t a

nd
 

N
on

-T
ra

di
tio

na
l 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 

$ 
   

2,
95

5,
00

0 
$ 

2,
95

5,
00

0  
$ 

- 
$ 

2,
95

5,
00

0 
$ 

2,
95

5,
00

0 
$ 

- 
$ 

- 

C
BL

 1
73

 
M

C
P 

20
19

 
 

19
,0

30
,6

88
 

 
3,

75
0,

00
0 

 
3,

67
0,

42
3 

 
79

,5
77

 
 

3,
75

0,
00

0 
 

- 
 

- 

C
BL

 1
76

 
M

C
P 

20
20

 
 

17
,5

56
,2

99
 

 
3,

75
0,

00
0 

 
3,

36
2,

70
0 

 
 

38
2,

16
4 

 
3,

74
4,

86
4 

 
5,

13
6 

 
5,

13
6 

C
BL

 1
80

 
M

C
P 

20
21

 
 

16
,1

72
,3

12
 

 
3,

75
0,

00
0 

 
1,

19
0,

27
8 

 
81

3,
60

3 
 

2,
00

3,
88

1 
 

1,
74

6,
11

9 
 

1,
74

6,
11

9 

C
BL

 1
82

 
Vi

ct
or

ia
 U

PC
C

 #
2 

 
4,

99
8,

63
9 

 
1,

49
9,

59
2 

 
1,

24
6,

34
0 

 
7,

85
1 

 
1,

25
4,

19
1 

 
- 

 
- 

C
BL

 1
83

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

D
ep

t. 
R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t -
 

LM
H

 

 
12

,8
00

,0
00

 
 

3,
73

8,
00

0 
 

1,
13

7,
30

7 
 

1,
86

0,
74

6 
 

2,
99

8,
05

3 
 

73
9,

94
7 

 
73

9,
94

7 

C
BL

 1
84

 
M

C
P 

20
22

 
 

17
,7

84
,5

82
 

 
3,

75
0,

00
0 

 
5,

00
6 

 
71

0,
36

2 
 

71
5,

36
8 

 
3,

03
4,

63
2 

 
3,

03
4,

63
2 

C
BL

 1
85

 
H

ig
h 

Ac
ui

ty
 U

ni
t –

 
VG

H
 

 
3,

39
7,

18
3 

 
1,

01
9,

15
5 

 
79

0,
94

1 
  

 
22

8,
21

4 
 

1,
01

9,
15

5 
 

- 
 

- 

C
BL

 1
87

 
M

C
P 

20
23

 
 

31
,5

74
,7

61
 

 
3,

75
0,

00
0 

 
- 

 
1,

54
2,

94
2 

 
1,

54
2,

94
2 

 
2,

20
7,

05
8 

 
2,

20
7,

05
8 

C
BL

 1
88

 
R

el
oc

at
e 

M
H

SU
 

AC
T 

Te
am

s 
 

2,
00

0,
00

0 
 

60
0,

00
0 

 
- 

 
60

,0
00

 
 

60
,0

00
 

 
- 

 
- 

C
BL

 1
89

 
M

ed
ic

al
 D

ev
ic

e 
R

ep
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

D
ep

t. 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

 
4,

24
0,

00
0 

 
1,

27
2,

00
0 

 
- 

 
17

,5
52

 
 

17
,5

52
 

 
1,

25
4,

44
8 

 
1,

25
4,

44
8 

C
BL

 1
91

 
N

ew
 L

on
g-

Te
rm

 
C

ar
e-

R
oy

al
 B

ay
 

 
22

3,
69

4,
00

0 
 

67
,1

08
,2

00
 

 
- 

 
12

9,
65

9 
 

12
9,

65
9 

 
66

,9
78

,5
41

 
 

66
,9

78
,5

41
 

To
ta

l C
om

m
itm

en
ts

 
$ 

35
6,

20
3,

46
4 

$ 
96

,9
41

,9
47

 
$ 

11
,4

02
,9

95
 

$ 
8,

78
7,

67
0 

$ 
20

,1
90

,6
65

 
$ 

75
,9

65
,8

81
 

$ 
75

,9
65

,8
81

 
 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
(M

C
P)

 a
re

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 v
al

ue
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

$1
00

,0
00

 a
nd

 $
2.

0 
m

illi
on

 to
 s

us
ta

in
 e

xi
tin

g 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 re
pl

ac
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

fu
nc

tio
na

lit
y.

  
M

aj
or

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

de
fin

ed
 a

s 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 v

al
ue

d 
at

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 $
2.

0 
m

illi
on

 a
nd

 m
od

ify
, e

xp
an

d/
en

ha
nc

e 
or

 re
pl

ac
e 

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
/p

ro
gr

am
 s

pa
ce

s.
 Is

la
nd

 H
ea

lth
’s

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

t i
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
ei

r c
ap

ita
l p

la
n 

an
d 

va
rio

us
 fu

nd
er

s.
 C

R
H

D
 c

os
t s

ha
re

s 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 o
f 3

0%
 fo

r M
aj

or
 C

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
up

 to
 th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

yl
aw

 a
m

ou
nt

. W
he

n 
a 

m
aj

or
 o

r m
in

or
 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
 is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 n

o 
fu

rth
er

 c
la

im
s 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

, t
he

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 c

om
m

itm
en

t i
s 

re
po

rte
d 

as
 n

il.
  

  



Notes  |  17

Notes to Financial Statements continued
  

NNoo
ttee

ss  
ttoo

  FF
iinn

aann
cciiaa

ll  SS
ttaa

ttee
mm

eenn
ttss

  cc
oonn

ttiinn
uuee

dd  
 

 

 
7.

 
C

O
M

M
IT

M
EN

TS
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
b)

 
H

os
pi

ta
l D

is
tr

ic
t a

pp
ro

ve
d,

 p
la

nn
ed

, a
nd

 a
ct

iv
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

by
 H

os
pi

ta
l F

ac
ili

ty
: 

    
B

yl
aw

 

   
Ye

ar
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 

    
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Pr

oj
ec

t C
os

t 
(Is

la
nd

 H
ea

lth
) 

 

H
os

pi
ta

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

Sh
ar

e 

 

Fu
nd

ed
 to

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
2 

 
Fu

nd
ed

 in
 

C
ur

re
nt

 
Ye

ar
 

(S
ch

ed
ul

e 
A

) 

 

Fu
nd

ed
 to

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
3 

 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

C
om

m
itm

en
t 

 
Pl

an
ne

d 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

   
 

20
24

 - 
20

28
 

A
PP

R
O

VE
D

 A
N

D
 A

C
TI

VE
 C

A
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

TS
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
19

1 
20

23
 

N
ew

 L
on

g-
Te

rm
 

C
ar

e 
– 

R
oy

al
 B

ay
 

$ 
22

3,
69

4,
00

0 
$ 

67
,1

08
,2

00
 

$ 
- 

$ 
12

9,
65

9 
$ 

12
9,

65
9 

$ 
66

,9
78

,5
41

 
$ 

66
,9

78
,5

41
 

Va
nc

ou
ve

r I
sl

an
d 

H
ea

lth
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

11
,0

08
,7

59
 

 
2,

78
0,

02
9 

 
1,

06
9,

70
1 

 
67

9,
23

0 
 

1,
74

8,
93

1 
 

1,
03

1,
09

8 
 

1,
03

1,
09

8 
Se

c 
20

(3
) 

20
23

 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t G

ra
nt

 
 

2,
92

5,
00

0 
 

2,
92

5,
00

0 
 

   
   

   
   

 - 
 

2,
92

5,
00

0 
 

2,
92

5,
00

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

 
   

   
   

   
   

- 
18

2 
20

21
 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 U
PC

C
 #

2 
 

4,
99

8,
63

9 
 

   
1,

49
9,

59
2 

 
1,

24
6,

34
0 

 
  7

,8
51

 
 

   
1,

25
4,

19
1 

 
- 

 
   

  -
 

M
ou

nt
 S

t. 
M

ar
y 

H
os

pi
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Se

c 
20

(3
) 

20
23

 
M

ov
ab

le
 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t G
ra

nt
 

 
30

,0
00

 
 

30
,0

00
 

 
   

   
   

   
- 

 
30

,0
00

 
 

30
,0

00
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 
   

   
   

   
  -

 

G
or

ge
 R

oa
d 

Ho
sp

ita
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

6,
38

9,
36

2 
 

1,
03

2,
16

7 
 

67
6,

78
8 

 
28

,9
54

 
 

70
5,

74
2 

 
32

6,
42

5 
 

32
6,

42
5 

Ju
an

 d
e 

Fu
ca

 H
os

pi
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ul
tip

le
 

20
19

-2
02

3 
 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

6,
80

5,
96

4 
 

1,
69

3,
54

9 
 

1,
38

2,
61

4 
 

18
6,

88
3 

 
1,

56
9,

49
7 

 
12

4,
05

2 
 

12
4,

05
2 

La
dy

 M
in

to
 H

os
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

21
3,

03
6 

 
47

,3
14

 
 

44
,9

50
 

 
- 

 
44

,9
50

 
 

2,
36

4 
 

2,
36

4 
18

3 
20

21
 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
D

ep
t. 

R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 
   

 1
2,

80
0,

00
0 

 
   

3,
73

8,
00

0 
 

1,
13

7,
30

7 
 

1,
86

0,
74

6 
 

2,
99

8,
05

3 
 

73
9,

94
7 

 
73

9,
94

7 

Q
ue

en
 A

le
xa

nd
ra

 H
os

pi
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ul
tip

le
 

20
19

-2
02

3 
M

in
or

 C
ap

ita
l  

 
2,

89
7,

75
0 

 
76

6,
56

2 
 

21
6,

78
8 

 
16

6,
15

7 
 

38
2,

94
5 

 
38

3,
61

7 
 

38
3,

61
7 

R
oy

al
 J

ub
ile

e 
H

os
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

32
,2

48
,9

48
 

 
5,

81
4,

17
0 

 
2,

36
0,

76
5 

 
1,

32
4,

57
0 

 
3,

68
5,

33
5 

 
2,

12
8,

83
5 

 
2,

12
8,

83
5 

18
8 

20
23

 
R

el
oc

at
io

n 
M

H
SU

 
AC

T 
Te

am
s 

 
2,

00
0,

00
0 

 
60

0,
00

0 
 

- 
 

60
,0

00
 

 
60

,0
00

 
 

- 
 

- 

Sa
an

ic
h 

Pe
ni

ns
ul

a 
H

os
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

2,
95

2,
76

3 
 

76
2,

59
6 

 
33

4,
55

6 
 

42
,9

28
 

 
37

7,
48

4 
 

38
5,

11
2 

 
38

5,
11

2 
Vi

ct
or

ia
 G

en
er

al
 H

os
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

39
,6

02
,0

60
 

 
5,

85
3,

61
3 

 
2,

14
2,

24
5 

 
1,

09
9,

92
6 

 
3,

24
2,

17
1 

 
2,

61
1,

44
2 

 
2,

61
1,

44
2 

18
5 

20
22

 
H

ig
h 

Ac
ui

ty
 U

ni
t 

 
3,

39
7,

18
3 

 
1,

01
9,

15
5 

 
79

0,
94

1 
 

22
8,

21
4 

 
1,

01
9,

15
5 

 
- 

 
- 

18
9 

20
23

 
M

D
R

D
 E

xp
an

si
on

 
 

4,
24

0,
00

0 
 

1,
27

2,
00

0 
 

- 
 

17
,5

52
 

 
17

,5
52

 
 

1,
25

4,
44

8 
 

1,
25

4,
44

8 

To
ta

l C
om

m
itm

en
ts

 
$ 

35
6,

20
3,

46
4 

$ 
96

,9
41

,9
47

 
$ 

11
,4

02
,9

95
 

$ 
8,

78
7,

67
0 

$ 
20

,1
90

,6
65

 
$ 

75
,9

65
,8

81
 

$ 
75

,9
65

,8
81

 

  
NNoo

ttee
ss  

ttoo
  FF

iinn
aann

cciiaa
ll  SS

ttaa
ttee

mm
eenn

ttss
  cc

oonn
ttiinn

uuee
dd  

 

 

 
7.

 
C

O
M

M
IT

M
EN

TS
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
b)

 
H

os
pi

ta
l D

is
tr

ic
t a

pp
ro

ve
d,

 p
la

nn
ed

, a
nd

 a
ct

iv
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

by
 H

os
pi

ta
l F

ac
ili

ty
: 

    
B

yl
aw

 

   
Ye

ar
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 

    
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Pr

oj
ec

t C
os

t 
(Is

la
nd

 H
ea

lth
) 

 

H
os

pi
ta

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

Sh
ar

e 

 

Fu
nd

ed
 to

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
2 

 
Fu

nd
ed

 in
 

C
ur

re
nt

 
Ye

ar
 

(S
ch

ed
ul

e 
A

) 

 

Fu
nd

ed
 to

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
3 

 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

C
om

m
itm

en
t 

 
Pl

an
ne

d 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

   
 

20
24

 - 
20

28
 

A
PP

R
O

VE
D

 A
N

D
 A

C
TI

VE
 C

A
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

TS
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
19

1 
20

23
 

N
ew

 L
on

g-
Te

rm
 

C
ar

e 
– 

R
oy

al
 B

ay
 

$ 
22

3,
69

4,
00

0 
$ 

67
,1

08
,2

00
 

$ 
- 

$ 
12

9,
65

9 
$ 

12
9,

65
9 

$ 
66

,9
78

,5
41

 
$ 

66
,9

78
,5

41
 

Va
nc

ou
ve

r I
sl

an
d 

H
ea

lth
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

11
,0

08
,7

59
 

 
2,

78
0,

02
9 

 
1,

06
9,

70
1 

 
67

9,
23

0 
 

1,
74

8,
93

1 
 

1,
03

1,
09

8 
 

1,
03

1,
09

8 
Se

c 
20

(3
) 

20
23

 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t G

ra
nt

 
 

2,
92

5,
00

0 
 

2,
92

5,
00

0 
 

   
   

   
   

 - 
 

2,
92

5,
00

0 
 

2,
92

5,
00

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

 
   

   
   

   
   

- 
18

2 
20

21
 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 U
PC

C
 #

2 
 

4,
99

8,
63

9 
 

   
1,

49
9,

59
2 

 
1,

24
6,

34
0 

 
  7

,8
51

 
 

   
1,

25
4,

19
1 

 
- 

 
   

  -
 

M
ou

nt
 S

t. 
M

ar
y 

H
os

pi
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Se

c 
20

(3
) 

20
23

 
M

ov
ab

le
 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t G
ra

nt
 

 
30

,0
00

 
 

30
,0

00
 

 
   

   
   

   
- 

 
30

,0
00

 
 

30
,0

00
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 
   

   
   

   
  -

 

G
or

ge
 R

oa
d 

Ho
sp

ita
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

6,
38

9,
36

2 
 

1,
03

2,
16

7 
 

67
6,

78
8 

 
28

,9
54

 
 

70
5,

74
2 

 
32

6,
42

5 
 

32
6,

42
5 

Ju
an

 d
e 

Fu
ca

 H
os

pi
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ul
tip

le
 

20
19

-2
02

3 
 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

6,
80

5,
96

4 
 

1,
69

3,
54

9 
 

1,
38

2,
61

4 
 

18
6,

88
3 

 
1,

56
9,

49
7 

 
12

4,
05

2 
 

12
4,

05
2 

La
dy

 M
in

to
 H

os
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

21
3,

03
6 

 
47

,3
14

 
 

44
,9

50
 

 
- 

 
44

,9
50

 
 

2,
36

4 
 

2,
36

4 
18

3 
20

21
 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
D

ep
t. 

R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 
   

 1
2,

80
0,

00
0 

 
   

3,
73

8,
00

0 
 

1,
13

7,
30

7 
 

1,
86

0,
74

6 
 

2,
99

8,
05

3 
 

73
9,

94
7 

 
73

9,
94

7 

Q
ue

en
 A

le
xa

nd
ra

 H
os

pi
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ul
tip

le
 

20
19

-2
02

3 
M

in
or

 C
ap

ita
l  

 
2,

89
7,

75
0 

 
76

6,
56

2 
 

21
6,

78
8 

 
16

6,
15

7 
 

38
2,

94
5 

 
38

3,
61

7 
 

38
3,

61
7 

R
oy

al
 J

ub
ile

e 
H

os
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

32
,2

48
,9

48
 

 
5,

81
4,

17
0 

 
2,

36
0,

76
5 

 
1,

32
4,

57
0 

 
3,

68
5,

33
5 

 
2,

12
8,

83
5 

 
2,

12
8,

83
5 

18
8 

20
23

 
R

el
oc

at
io

n 
M

H
SU

 
AC

T 
Te

am
s 

 
2,

00
0,

00
0 

 
60

0,
00

0 
 

- 
 

60
,0

00
 

 
60

,0
00

 
 

- 
 

- 

Sa
an

ic
h 

Pe
ni

ns
ul

a 
H

os
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l  
 

2,
95

2,
76

3 
 

76
2,

59
6 

 
33

4,
55

6 
 

42
,9

28
 

 
37

7,
48

4 
 

38
5,

11
2 

 
38

5,
11

2 
Vi

ct
or

ia
 G

en
er

al
 H

os
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ul

tip
le

 
20

19
-2

02
3 

M
in

or
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

39
,6

02
,0

60
 

 
5,

85
3,

61
3 

 
2,

14
2,

24
5 

 
1,

09
9,

92
6 

 
3,

24
2,

17
1 

 
2,

61
1,

44
2 

 
2,

61
1,

44
2 

18
5 

20
22

 
H

ig
h 

Ac
ui

ty
 U

ni
t 

 
3,

39
7,

18
3 

 
1,

01
9,

15
5 

 
79

0,
94

1 
 

22
8,

21
4 

 
1,

01
9,

15
5 

 
- 

 
- 

18
9 

20
23

 
M

D
R

D
 E

xp
an

si
on

 
 

4,
24

0,
00

0 
 

1,
27

2,
00

0 
 

- 
 

17
,5

52
 

 
17

,5
52

 
 

1,
25

4,
44

8 
 

1,
25

4,
44

8 

To
ta

l C
om

m
itm

en
ts

 
$ 

35
6,

20
3,

46
4 

$ 
96

,9
41

,9
47

 
$ 

11
,4

02
,9

95
 

$ 
8,

78
7,

67
0 

$ 
20

,1
90

,6
65

 
$ 

75
,9

65
,8

81
 

$ 
75

,9
65

,8
81

 



18  |  Notes

Notes to Financial Statements continued

  NNootteess  ttoo  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  ccoonnttiinnuueedd  
 

 

 
8. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

 
The Hospital District has $89,343 in outstanding contractual obligations as at December 31, 2023 
(2022: $nil). 
 
 

9. CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS 
 

a. The Hospital District financed the capital cost of the Summit at Quadra Village, a complex care 
facility. The facility was substantially completed by December 31, 2019 and residents moved in 
July 2020. Under the agreement, Island Health contributes through annual lease payments over a 
25-year period. Lease payments commenced February 1, 2020 and are $4,338,178 annually. 
 

b. The Hospital District has an agreement with Fido Solutions to operate a temporary cellular site on 
the lands at 2251 Cadboro Bay Rd. for a term of five years until March 31, 2026.  The annual rent 
is $20,000. 

 
 

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Hospital District is a related party to the Capital Regional District (CRD). The Board of Directors 
for each entity is comprised of the same individuals.  As legislated by the Hospital District Act, the 
officers and employees of the CRD are the corresponding officers and employees of the Hospital 
District.  The CRD and the Hospital District are separate legal entities as defined by separate Letters 
Patent and authorized by separate legislation.  During the year the Hospital District purchased, at cost, 
$947,496 (2022: $883,575) of administrative support and project management services from the CRD, 
of which $nil (2022: $nil) was capitalized.  
 
The Regional Housing First Program (RHFP) is a partnership between the CRD, the Provincial and 
Federal governments to provide capital funding to affordable housing projects in the region. The CRD, 
Capital Region Housing Corporation and the Hospital District will invest a combined $40 million towards 
projects. In 2018, a RHFP project management office was created to support the delivery of the 
program. During the year the Hospital District contributed, $120,653 (2022: $118,287) to the CRD, to 
cost share in administrative support and project management services.     
 
 

11. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 
 

 
  2023  2022 
    Restated (Note 2) 
Surplus/(Deficit):     
Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) $ 8,061,145 $ (4,990,225) 
Reserve funds set aside for specific purposes:     
     Debt Management Reserve  7,193,643            3,359,413  

Regional Housing First Program Reserve  11,327,857           10,383,057 
Summit Management Reserve  1,332,941              891,288 
Land Holdings Management Reserve  1,662,088            1,405,013 
Minor Capital Projects Reserve  6,992,945           6,771,594 
Hospital District Act Section 20(3) Reserve    3,037,901            2,739,732 

Accumulated Surplus $ 39,608,520 $         20,559,872  
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

  NNootteess  ttoo  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  ccoonnttiinnuueedd  
 

 

 
12. BUDGET DATA 

 
The budget data presented in these financial statements is based upon the 2023 operating and capital 
budgets approved by the Board on March 15, 2023.  The chart below reconciles the approved budget 
to the budget figures reported in these financial statements. 
 
  Budget Amount 

   
Revenue budget $ 32,678,573 
Less:   
     Transfers from reserve   (394,051) 
Revenue per Financial Statements  32,284,522 
   
   
Expense budget         32,678,573 
Add:   
 Grants to district hospitals  3,868,603 
Less:   
    Transfers to reserve            (3,783,952) 
    Debt principal payments  (13,918,997) 
   
Expense per Financial Statements  18,844,227 
   
Annual Surplus $      13,440,295 

 
 
 
13. CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

 
From time to time, the Capital Regional Hospital District is subject to claims and other lawsuits that 
arise in the course of business, some of which may seek damages in substantial amounts.  Liability for 
these claims and lawsuits are recorded to the extent that the probability of a loss is likely and it is 
estimable. 
 
 

14. FINANCIAL RISKS AND CONCENTRATION OF RISK 
 

The Capital Regional Hospital District has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial 
instruments:  

a) Credit risk:  

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party may default on its contractual obligations resulting 
in a financial loss. The Hospital District is subject to credit risk with respect to the accounts 
receivable, investments, and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk arises from the possibility that 
taxpayers and entities to which the Hospital District provides services may experience financial 
difficulty and be unable to fulfill their obligations. This risk is mitigated as most accounts receivable 
are due from government agencies and are collectible.  

There have been no significant changes to credit risk exposure from 2022. 
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  NNootteess  ttoo  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  ccoonnttiinnuueedd  
 

 

        14. FINANCIAL RISKS AND CONCENTRATION OF RISK (continued) 

b) Liquidity risk:  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Hospital District will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely 
basis or at a reasonable cost. The Hospital District manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its 
operating requirements; preparing budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has sufficient funds to 
fulfill its obligations.  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are generally due within 30 days of receipt of an invoice.   

There have been no significant changes to liquidity risk exposure from 2022. 

 

c) Market Risk:  

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates or interest 
rates will affect the Hospital District’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  
The objective of market risk management is to control risk exposures within acceptable parameters 
while optimizing return on investment. 

i. Foreign exchange risk: 

The Hospital District does not enter into foreign exchange transactions and therefore is not 
exposed to foreign exchange risk. 

There have been no significant changes to foreign exchange risk exposure from 2022. 

ii. Interest rate risk: 

The Hospital District is exposed to interest rate risk through its investments and debt 
instruments. It is management’s opinion that the Hospital District is not exposed to 
significant interest rate risk in their investments as they manage this risk through its 
investment policy which includes restrictions on types and concentration of instruments 
held. 

Exposure to interest rate risk in relation to debt instruments is limited to long term debt 
renewals and short-term financing. The risk applies only to long term debt when 
amortization periods exceed the initial locked in term. Short term financing is subject to 
daily floating rates, which can result in variability over the course of short-term financing.  
Interest rate risk related to debt instruments is managed through budget and cash 
forecasts.   

There has been no change to the risk exposure from 2022. 

 
 

Notes to Financial Statements continued
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CCAAPPIITTAALL  RREEGGIIOONNAALL  HHOOSSPPIITTAALL  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT SScchheedduullee  AA

GGrraannttss  ttoo  DDiissttrriicctt  HHoossppiittaallss
FFoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22002233

Total grants Transfers to Total grants
December 31 Expense completed December 31

2022 2023 projects 2023

PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
Designated Health Care facilities $ 1,770,686        $ 129,659           $ - $ 1,900,345        
Vancouver Island Health Authority 8,652,998        3,612,081        (4,136,661)       8,128,418        
Gorge Road Hospital 749,927           28,954             (89,668)            689,213           
Juan de Fuca Hospital 1,856,202        186,883           (1,122,548)       920,537           
Lady  Minto Hospital 1,532,246        1,860,746        (39,735)            3,353,257        
Mount St. Mary Hospital 30,000             30,000             (30,000)            30,000             
Queen Alexandra Hospital 216,787           166,157           (49,489)            333,455           
Royal Jubilee Hospital 9,376,617        1,384,570        (1,199,133)       9,562,054        
Saanich Peninsula Hospital 1,261,454        42,928             (273,189)          1,031,193        
Victoria General Hospital 4,280,683        1,345,692        (2,097,923)       3,528,452        

29,727,600      8,787,670        (9,038,346)       29,476,924      

COMPLETED PROJECTS
Designated Health Care facilities 22,394,214      - - 22,394,214      
Vancouver Island Health Authority 86,471,323      - 4,136,661 90,607,984      
Gorge Road Hospital 8,172,791        - 89,668 8,262,459        
Juan de Fuca Hospital 37,810,609      - 1,122,548 38,933,157      
Lady  Minto Hospital 5,821,332        - 39,735 5,861,067        
Mount St. Mary Hospital - Fairfield 15,509,545      - 30,000 15,539,545      
Queen Alexandra Hospital 9,469,944        - 49,489 9,519,433        
Royal Jubilee Hospital 261,230,991    - 1,199,133 262,430,124    
Saanich Peninsula Hospital 20,502,548      - 273,189 20,775,737      
Victoria General Hospital 100,464,882    - 2,097,923 102,562,805    

567,848,179    - 9,038,346 576,886,525    
597,575,779    8,787,670        - 606,363,449 

LESS: 
Province of British Columbia share of
grants to hospitals recorded before 
change in capital payment process in 2000 (126,010,301)   - - (126,010,301)   

$ 471,565,478    $ 8,787,670        $ - $ 480,353,148    

Total grants to date is cumulative since incorporation of the Hospital District in 1967

Capital Regional Hospital District	

Grants to District Hospitals
For the year ended December 31, 2023

Schedule A
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Table of contents
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results

12 Control 
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The purpose of this report is to assist you, as a member of the Hospitals and Housing Committee, in your review of the results of our audit of the financial statements. This 
report is intended solely for the information and use of Management, the Hospitals and Housing Committee, and the Board of Directors and should not be used for any other 
purpose or any other party. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this report has not been prepared 
for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third party or for any other purpose.

Policies and 
practices

5 Status 11 Misstatements

Digital use 
information
This Audit Findings Report 

is also available as a 
“hyper-linked” PDF 

document. 
If you are reading in 

electronic form (e.g. In 
“Adobe Reader” or “Board 

Books”), clicking on the 
home symbol on the top 
right corner will bring you 

back to this slide. 

Click on any item in the 
table of contents to 

navigate to that section.
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Policies and 
practices

Accounting policies and practices

Other financial reporting matters

Audit highlights

Control 
observations

No significant risks to report beyond those required 
by professional standards

Other risks of material misstatement

Other procedures

Going concern matters

Risks 
assessment 

and results

Topic
Scope

Our audit of the financial statements (“financial statements”) 
of Capital Regional Hospital District (“the Entity” or “CRHD”) 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, was 
performed in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
auditing standards.

Corrected 
misstatements

Corrected misstatements

There are no matters to report.

Status

We have completed the audit of the financial statements 
(“financial statements”), with the exception 
of certain remaining outstanding procedures, which are 
highlighted on the ‘Status’ slide of this report.

Uncorrected 
misstatements

Uncorrected misstatements

Matters to report – see link for detailsNo matters to report

Control observations

Significant risks

We did not identify any control deficiencies that we 
determined to be significant deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting. We have provided an update on 
prior year control observations.

One historical difference from 2017 remains uncorrected related 
to debt issuance costs recognized in 2017 as an expense rather 
than over the 25 year term of the debt. We concur with 
management’s representation that the difference is not material 
to the financial statements. 

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices
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Status

As of the date of this report, we have completed the audit of the financial statements, with the exception of certain remaining 
procedures, which include amongst others:

• Completing our discussions with the Hospitals and Housing Committee
• Obtaining evidence of the Board of Directors’ acceptance of the financial statements
• Obtaining a signed management representation letter
• Completing subsequent event review procedures up to the date of the Board of Directors’ acceptance of the financial 

statements. 

We will update the Hospitals and Housing Committee, and not solely the Chair, on significant matters, if any, arising from the 
completion of the audit, including the completion of the above procedures.

A draft of our auditor’s report is included in the draft financial statements.

Learn more

Status Control deficiencies AppendicesRisks and results Misstatements Policies and practicesHighlights

https://players.brightcove.net/3755095886001/default_default/index.html?videoId=6087104705001
https://players.brightcove.net/3755095886001/default_default/index.html?videoId=6087104705001
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Significant risks and results
Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Policies and practices

Our response

Our procedures included: 

• testing of journal entries and other adjustments,

• performing a retrospective review of estimates,

• evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual transactions.

Significant findings

• There were no issues noted in our testing.  

This is a presumed fraud risk. Management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to manipulate accounting records 
and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Although the level of risk 
of management override of controls will vary from entity to entity, the risk nevertheless is present in all entities. We have not identified any 
specific additional risks of management override relating to this audit.

Fraud risk from management override of controls

We highlight our significant findings in respect of significant risks as identified in our discussion with you in the Audit Plan, as well as any 

additional significant risks identified. 

Misstatements
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Other risks of material misstatement and results
Asset Retirement Obligation

The Entity adopted PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations (“ARO”) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. This accounting 
standard addresses the reporting of legal obligations associated with the retirement of certain tangible capital assets. Under the new 
standard, an entity is required to review its tangible capital assets and identify any legal obligations associated with the retirement of 
those tangible capital assets (ex: removal of asbestos), estimate the future remediation cost, and record that future obligation as a 
corresponding depreciable asset and liability in the statement of financial position today. This significant new accounting standard has 
implications that have the potential to go beyond financial reporting, and will require organizations to think about how these future 
obligations will be funded. 

Management implemented the new standard on a modified retroactive basis which resulted in a liability of $472,839 being recognized 
on adoption at January 1, 2023.  The liability relates to asbestos containing materials in one building.  The change in value between the 
adoption date and year end was $93,505, with a liability of $566,344 at December 31, 2023.

Our response

• We obtained an understanding of management’s process for adopting the standard through discussion with management and 
review of their scoping and measurement analysis.

• We tested completeness of in-scope identified assets, through discussions with internal experts, review of external hazardous 
materials reports (where applicable), and review of other external source documents to validate whether any AROs existed at the 
financial reporting date.  

• We tested the accuracy of the calculations made by management to arrive at the estimated remediation cost, including sampling a 
number of buildings and validating the appropriateness of inputs and assumptions that feed into the calculations.

• We reviewed the related financial statement disclosures and accounting policies. 

Findings

There were no issues noted in our testing.  Because the prior year comparative balances were restated, our auditor’s report includes 
emphasis of matter and other matter paragraphs noting the change in the comparative balances and our audit of the restatement. 

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Policies and practicesMisstatements
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Other risks of material misstatement and results
Tangible Capital Assets 

• We obtained an updated understanding of the capital asset process.

• We obtained the continuity schedule of opening balances, additions, disposals, amortization and closing balances and validated 
the mathematical accuracy of the schedule. 

• We assessed management’s accounting and disclosures for capital commitments.

• We verified the accuracy of amortization expense and inquired about any changes to the amortization policy or processes.

Our response

• There were no issues noted in our testing.  

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Policies and practicesMisstatements

Findings
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Other procedures performed
Cash, investments and debt

• We confirmed the balances with the respective financial institutions.

• We tested subsequent payments to determine if they were recorded in the correct accounting period. 

• No issues were noted in our testing.

Response and findings

Revenue and expenses

• We completed a test of details over lease revenue and taxation revenue, agreement amounts to budget, contracts and cash receipt.

• Grants to Island Health were tested by comparing actual expenses to approved bylaws, cash payments and classification by nature 
and facility. A sample of expenses were tested to underlying vendor invoice noting the applicable facility and project being funded.

• No issues were noted in our testing. 

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Policies and practicesMisstatements

Response and findings
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Other procedures performed

Concluding and reporting

We performed the following procedures as part of the overall conclusion and reporting phases of the audit: 
• Evaluated management bias in the preparation of financial statements, based on patterns in the selection and application of 

accounting policies and principles. 

• Financial statement presentation and disclosure was evaluated for compliance with accounting standards and comparability to 
industry leading practice, for example financial reporting award requirements of Government Finance Officers Association 
International.

• Legal exposure and estimates of contingency provisions were evaluated against supporting documentation including direct 
confirmation with external legal counsel. 

• Disclosures in the financial statement notes were evaluated for completeness based on our knowledge of the Entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, related party transactions, future contractual commitments and events occurring after year end. 

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Policies and practicesMisstatements

Response and findings
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Uncorrected misstatements
Uncorrected misstatements include financial presentation and disclosure misstatements.   

.

Impact of uncorrected misstatements
The management representation letter includes the Summary of Uncorrected Audit Misstatements, which discloses the impact of all uncorrected 
misstatements considered to be other than clearly trivial, including the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of 
transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.

One historical difference from 2017 remains uncorrected related to debt issuance costs recognized in 2017 as an expense rather than over the 25 year term 
of the debt. 

This results in a timing difference that will decline in value over the term of the debt. The uncorrected difference results in an overstatement of debt and 
understatement of accumulated surplus of $88,200. 

Based on both qualitative and quantitative considerations, management have decided not to correct certain misstatements and represented to us that the 
misstatements —individually and in the aggregate—are, in their judgment, not material to the financial statements. This management representation is 
included in the management representation letter.

We concur with management’s representation that the uncorrected misstatements are not material to the financial statements. Accordingly, the uncorrected 
misstatements have no effect on our auditor's report. 

MisstatementsHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Policies and practicesControl deficiencies
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Control deficiencies

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting
A deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A deficiency in design exists when (a) a control necessary to meet the control objective is missing or (b) an existing control is not properly designed so 
that, even if the control operates as designed, the control objective would not be met. A deficiency in operation exists when a properly designed control does not operate as designed, or 
when the person performing the control does not possess the necessary authority or competence to perform the control effectively.

Consideration of internal control over financial reporting (ICFR) 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered ICFR relevant to the Entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on ICFR.

Our understanding of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to identify all control deficiencies that might be significant 
deficiencies. The matters being reported are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the audit that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being 
reported to those charged with governance.

Our awareness of control deficiencies varies with each audit and is influenced by the nature, timing, and extent of audit procedures performed, as well as other factors. Had we performed 
more extensive procedures on internal control over financial reporting, we might have identified more significant deficiencies to be reported or concluded that some of the reported 
significant deficiencies need not, in fact, have been reported.

Significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
A deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, is important enough to merit the attention of those charged with governance. 

We did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Policies and practicesMisstatements
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Accounting policies and practices
We also highlight the following:

Significant accounting policies

• Management adopted PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations during the year using the 
modified retroactive method. There were no issues noted as a result of adoption.

• There were no significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas.
• There were no issues noted with the timing of CRHD’s transactions in relation to the 

period in which they were recorded. 
• There were no issues noted with the extent to which the financial statements are affected 

by a significant unusual transactions and extent of disclosure of such transactions. 
• There were no issues noted with the extent to which the financial statements are affected 

by non-recurring amounts recognized during the period and extent of disclosure of such 
transactions. 

Significant accounting estimates
• There were no issues noted with management’s identification of accounting estimates.
• There were no issues noted with management’s process for making accounting estimates.
• There were no indicators of possible management bias.

Significant qualitative aspects of financial 
statement presentation and disclosure

• There were no issues noted with the judgments made, in formulating particularly sensitive 
financial statement disclosures.

• There were no issues noted with the overall neutrality, consistency, and clarity of the 
disclosures in the financial statements.

• There were no significant potential effects on the financial statements of significant risks, 
exposures and uncertainties.

Policies and practicesControl deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus MisstatementsRisks and results



14

Appendices

Audit quality32 Management 
representation letter

Audit and Assurance 
Insights5 Environmental, social 

and governance (ESG)6

1 Required 
communicated

Changes in accounting 

standards4



15

Appendix 1: Required communications

Auditor’s report Engagement letter

Refer to the draft report attached to the financial statements. The objectives of the audit, our responsibilities in carrying out our audit, as well as 
management’s responsibilities, are set out in the engagement letter. 

Independence Management representation letter

As required by professional standards, we have considered all relationships 
between KPMG and the Entity that may have a bearing on independence. We 
confirm that we are independent with respect to the Entity within the meaning of 
the relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant 
professional bodies in Canada and any other standards or applicable legislation 
or regulation from January 1, 2023 up until the date of this report.

We will obtain from management certain representations at the completion of the audit. 
In accordance with professional standards, a copy of the representation letter is 
attached.

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices
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Appendix 2: Management representation letter

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices



(Letterhead of Client) 

KPMG LLP 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
St. Andrew’s Square II 
800-730 View Street
Victoria, BC V8W 3Y7

May X, 2024 

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) of Capital Regional Hospital 
District (“the Entity”) as at and for the period ended December 31, 2023. 

General: 

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as set out in 
Attachment I to this letter. 

We also confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary 
for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Responsibilities: 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated September 9,
2022, including for:

a) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and believe that these financial
statements have been prepared and present fairly in accordance with the relevant financial reporting
framework.

b) providing you with all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial
statements (“relevant information”), such as financial records, documentation and other matters, including:

— the names of all related parties and information regarding all relationships and transactions with
related parties;

— the complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have
not yet been prepared, board of directors and committees of the board of directors that may affect the 
financial statements. All significant actions are included in such summaries. 



  

c) providing you with unrestricted access to such relevant information. 

d) providing you with complete responses to all enquiries made by you during the engagement. 

e) providing you with additional information that you may request from us for the purpose of the engagement. 

f) providing you with unrestricted access to persons within the Entity from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 

g) such internal control as we determined is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. We also acknowledge and understand 
that we are responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to prevent and 
detect fraud. 

h) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial statements. 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

2) We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or maintenance of internal 
control over financial reporting of which we are aware. 

Fraud & non-compliance with laws and regulations: 

3) We have disclosed to you: 

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a 
result of fraud. 

b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of that involves:  

— management; 

— employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting; or  

— others 

where such fraud or suspected fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements, 
communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others. 

d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, including 
all aspects of contractual agreements or illegal acts, whose effects should be considered when preparing 
financial statements. 



  

e) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the 
financial statements. 

Subsequent events: 

4) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant financial reporting 
framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements have been adjusted or disclosed. 

Related parties: 

5) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties. 
6) We have disclosed to you all the related party relationships and transactions/balances of which we are aware. 

7) All related party relationships and transactions/balances have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed 
in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework. 

Estimates: 

8) The methods, the data and the significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, and their related 
disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in the context 
of the applicable financial reporting framework. 

Going concern: 

9) We have provided you with all information relevant to the use of the going concern assumption in the financial 
statements. 

10) We confirm that we are not aware of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt upon the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

Misstatements: 

11) The effects of the uncorrected misstatements described in Attachment II are immaterial, both individually and 
in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. 

Non-SEC registrants or non-reporting issuers: 

12) We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any applicable Canadian 
securities act) and is not a United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Issuer (as defined by 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).  

13) We also confirm that the financial statements of the Entity will not be included in the group financial statements 
of a Canadian reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer audited by any member of the KPMG 
organization. 



  

Yours very truly, 

 

_______________________________________ 
Ted Robbins, Chief Administrative Officer 

_______________________________________ 
Nelson Chan, Chief Financial Officer 

_______________________________________ 
Kevin Lorette, General Manager, Planning and Protective Services 



  

Attachment I – Definitions 
Materiality 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.  

Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.    

Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by 
perception of the needs of, or the characteristics of, the users of the financial statements and, the 
size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both while also considering the entity’s own 
circumstances. 

Information is obscured if it is communicated in a way that would have a similar effect for users of 
financial statements to omitting or misstating that information. The following are examples of 
circumstances that may result in material information being obscured: 

a) information regarding a material item, transaction or other event is disclosed in the financial 
statements but the language used is vague or unclear; 

b) information regarding a material item, transaction or other event is scattered throughout the 
financial statements; 

c) dissimilar items, transactions or other events are inappropriately aggregated; 

d) similar items, transactions or other events are inappropriately disaggregated; and 

e) the understandability of the financial statements is reduced as a result of material 
information being hidden by immaterial information to the extent that a primary user is 
unable to determine what information is material. 

 

Fraud & error 

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or 
disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users. 

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied by false 
or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

Attachment II – Summary of Audit Misstatements Schedule(s) 
Uncorrected Misstatement 

Presented in dollars 
Statement of 
operations 
effect  

Statement of financial position effect 

Description of individually 
significant misstatements 

(Decrease) 
Increase 

Assets 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

Liabilities 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

Accumulated 
surplus 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

To recognize debt issuance 
expense over the term of the 
debt instead of in the year of 
issuance 

($88,200)  - ($88,200) - 

Total misstatements  ($88,200) - ($88,200) - 

 
 
 



17

Appendix 3: Audit quality - How do we deliver audit quality?
Quality essentially means doing the right thing and remains our 
highest priority. Our Global Quality Framework outlines how we 
deliver quality and how every partner and staff member contributes 
to its delivery.

The drivers outlined in the framework are the ten components of the KPMG System of 
Quality Management (SoQM). Aligned with ISQM 1/CSQM 1, our SoQM components 
also meet the requirements of the International Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA) and the relevant rules of 
professional conduct / code of ethics applicable to the practice of public accounting in 
Canada, which apply to professional services firms that perform audits of financial 
statements. Our Transparency Report includes our firm’s Statement on the 
Effectiveness of our SoQM.

We define ‘audit quality’ as being the outcome when:

• audits are executed consistently, in line with the requirements and intent of applicable 
professional standards within a strong system of quality management; and 

• all of our related activities are undertaken in an environment of the utmost level of 
objectivity, independence, ethics and integrity. 

KPMG 2023 Audit Quality and Transparency Report

Doing the right thing. Always.

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/services/audit/transparency-report.html
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Appendix 4: Changes in accounting standards
Standard Summary and implications

Revenue • The new standard PS 3400 Revenue is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023. 
• The new standard establishes a single framework to categorize revenue to enhance the consistency of revenue recognition and its measurement. 
• The standard notes that in the case of revenue arising from an exchange transaction, a public sector entity must ensure the recognition of revenue aligns 

with the satisfaction of related performance obligations. 
• The standard notes that unilateral revenue arises when no performance obligations are present, and recognition occurs when there is authority to record 

the revenue and an event has happened that gives the public sector entity the right to the revenue.

Purchased 
Intangibles

• The new Public Sector Guideline 8 Purchased intangibles is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023 with earlier adoption permitted. 
• The guideline allows public sector entities to recognize intangibles purchased through an exchange transaction. The definition of an asset, the general 

recognition criteria and GAAP hierarchy are used to account for purchased intangibles.
• Narrow scope amendments were made to PS 1000 Financial statement concepts to remove the prohibition to recognize purchased intangibles and to PS 

1201 Financial statement presentation to remove the requirement to disclose purchased intangibles not recognized. 
• The guideline can be applied retroactively or prospectively.

Effective FY2024

Effective FY2024

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices
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Appendix 4: Changes in accounting standards (continued)
Standard Summary and implications

Employee 
benefits

• The Public Sector Accounting Board has initiated a review of sections PS 3250 Retirement benefits and PS 3255 Post-employment benefits, compensated 
absences and termination benefits. 

• The intention is to use principles from International Public Sector Accounting Standard 39 Employee benefits as a starting point to develop the Canadian 
standard.

• Given the complexity of issues involved and potential implications of any changes that may arise from the review of the existing guidance, the new 
standards will be implemented in a multi-release strategy. The first standard will provide foundational guidance. Subsequent standards will provide 
additional guidance on current and emerging issues.

• The proposed section PS 3251 Employee benefits will replace the current sections PS 3250 Retirement benefits and PS 3255 Post-employment benefits, 
compensated absences and termination benefits. It will apply to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2026. Early adoption will be permitted and 
guidance applied retroactively. 

• This proposed section would result in public sector entities recognizing the impact of revaluations of the net defined benefit liability (asset) immediately on 
the statement of financial position. Organizations would also assess the funding status of their post-employment benefit plans to determine the appropriate 
rate for discounting post-employment benefit obligations.

• The Public Sector Accounting Board is in the process of evaluating comments received from stakeholders on the exposure draft.

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices
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Appendix 4: Changes in accounting standards (continued)
Standard Summary and implications

Concepts 
Underlying 
Financial 
Performance

• The revised conceptual framework is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2026 with earlier adoption permitted. 
• The framework provides the core concepts and objectives underlying Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
• The ten chapter conceptual framework defines and elaborates on the characteristics of public sector entities and their financial reporting objectives. 

Additional information is provided about financial statement objectives, qualitative characteristics and elements. General recognition and measurement 
criteria, and presentation concepts are introduced.

Financial 
Statement 
Presentation

• The proposed section PS 1202 Financial statement presentation will replace the current section PS 1201 Financial statement presentation. PS 1202 
Financial statement presentation will apply to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2026 to coincide with the adoption of the revised conceptual 
framework. Early adoption will be permitted. 

• The proposed section includes the following:
• Relocation of the net debt indicator to its own statement called the statement of net financial assets/liabilities, with the calculation of net debt refined to 

ensure its original meaning is retained.
• Separating liabilities into financial liabilities and non-financial liabilities.
• Restructuring the statement of financial position to present total assets followed by total liabilities.
• Changes to common terminology used in the financial statements, including re-naming accumulated surplus (deficit) to net assets (liabilities).
• Removal of the statement of remeasurement gains (losses) with the information instead included on a new statement called the statement of changes 

in net assets (liabilities). This new statement would present the changes in each component of net assets (liabilities), including a new component called 
“accumulated other”.

• A new provision whereby an entity can use an amended budget in certain circumstances.
• Inclusion of disclosures related to risks and uncertainties that could affect the entity’s financial position.

• The Public Sector Accounting Board is currently deliberating on feedback received on exposure drafts related to the reporting model.

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices
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Appendix 5: Audit and assurance insights

KPMG Audit & Assurance Insights
Curated research and insights for audit 

committees and boards.

Board Leadership Centre
Leading insights to help board members 

maximize boardroom opportunities

Current Developments
Series of quarterly publications for Canadian 

businesses including Spotlight on IFRS, Canadian 
Securities & Auditing Matters and US Outlook reports.

Audit Committee Guide – Canadian Edition
A practical guide providing insight into current 

challenges and leading practices shaping audit 
committee effectiveness in Canada.

Accelerate 2023
The key issues driving the audit committee 
agenda in 2023.

Momentum
A quarterly newsletter with the latest thought-leadership 
from KPMG's subject matter leaders across Canada 
and valuable audit resources for clients.

KPMG Climate Change Financial 
Reporting Resource Centre
Our climate change resource center provides 
insights to help you identify the potential financial 
statement impacts to your business.

IFRS Breaking News 
A monthly Canadian newsletter that provides the latest 
insights on international financial reporting standards 
and IASB activities. 

Our latest thinking on the issues that matter most to the Finance and Audit Committee, board of directors and management.

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/05/audit-assurance-insights.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/market-insights/board-leadership.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/11/current-developments.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/11/audit-committee-guide-canadian-edition.html
https://kpmg.com/ca/en/home/insights/2023/11/accelerate.html
https://kpmg.com/ca/en/home/insights/2023/08/momentum-august-2023.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2021/06/climatechange-financial-reporting-resource-centre.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2021/06/climatechange-financial-reporting-resource-centre.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2010/03/international-financial-reporting-standards-ifrs.html
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ESG 
reporting 

journey

Appendix 6: How we can help along your ESG reporting journey
Preparing for ESG reporting in accordance with regulatory standards will take substantial time and resources – it is a journey. The end goal is 
implementing and sustaining ESG external reporting in compliance with the applicable reporting frameworks in such a way that the ESG 
information and metrics reported can be verified and assured. 

As your financial statement auditor, we are able to support you across a number of activities throughout your ESG reporting journey, 
prior to undertaking assurance readiness or formal assurance on your reported ESG information and metrics. 

Implement / Report
• ESG reporting training to Board 

and Management

Establish
• Findings and observations with respect 

to materiality assessment, 
governance structure, reporting 
strategy 

• Gap assessment to global reporting 
standards (e.g., IFRS S1 and S2)

• Peer benchmarking and insights on 
industry best practices

Design
• Provide management with 

feedback on the reporting 
roadmap

• Findings and observations on 
draft external disclosures 
based on leading practice  

Assess
• Feedback on current state 

operating model, including 
processes, people, technology, 
service delivery model and data

• Review existing data and 
estimation methodologies 

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices
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We are one-team at KPMG. 
With KPMG’s one-team approach, you will benefit from the efficiencies gained by having members of your financial statement audit team 
engaged in your ESG reporting journey along with our ESG subject matter experts.

Appendix 6: Why your auditors should be engaged in the 
reporting  journey

It is important to have a general 
understanding of the entity and its control 
environment (e.g., IT systems and 
underlying processes) to best support you in 
your ESG reporting journey 

Management meetings are carried out once 
and leveraged across your financial 
statement and ESG journey process, 
wherever possible

Key messages and reports to management 
and the audit committee will be consistent 
and include both financial and ESG 
information

We know you Synergies gained

Increased demand for consistency between 
ESG reporting and financial reporting puts 
us in the best position to support you

Having KPMG as your ESG service provider 
– your key audit points of contacts will 
enable you to get clear perspectives on all 
your reporting needs when you need them

Engaging us in the reporting process today 
will be an investment that will lead to 
efficiencies when undergoing limited 
assurance in the future

Connected to
financial statements Single point of contact Future efficiencies

Coordinated 
approach

Control deficienciesHighlights AppendicesStatus Risks and results Misstatements Policies and practices
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Appendix 6: IFRS Sustainability disclosure standards
Environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)

First IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards
The arrival of the first two IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards marks a key milestone in sustainability reporting and is a significant step towards 
creation of a global baseline for stakeholder-focused sustainability reporting that local jurisdictions can build on. Although the standards are not required 
to be adopted by CRHD, the new IFRS sustainability standards provide key insights into what the future of sustainability reporting may look like 
for CRHD. The Canadian Sustainability Standards Board released the first proposed Canadian standards for public comments due by June 10, 
2024.

Summary of the recently released standards
The standards build on the four-pillar structure of the Task Force on Climate-related 
Financial Disclosures.
The general requirements standard (IFRS S1)
defines the scope and objectives of reporting and
provides core content, presentation and practical
requirements.

It requires disclosure of material information  on 
all sustainability-related risks and opportunities –
not just on climate.

The climate standard (IFRS S2) replicates the 
core content requirements and supplements them 
with climate-specific reporting requirements.

Governance

Strategy

Risk management

Metrics and targets

C
lim

at
e 

pr
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tu

re
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

Presentation and practical  
requirements

General requirements

Visit KPMG’s Sustainability Reporting website for 
more information, including a comprehensive 

summary of the new requirements and KPMG’s 
insights and illustrative examples for the new 

standards. 
Click here to access KPMG’s portal 
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https://kpmg.com/xx/en/home/insights/2020/10/sustainability-reporting.html?j=41795224&e=asifahirji@kpmg.ca&l=19249070_HTML&u=751301534&mid=10490152&jb=0&utm_medium=Email&utm_source=SFMC&utm_campaign=23Jun_EXT_ESG_ISSB%20Standards
https://kpmg.com/xx/en/home/insights/2020/10/sustainability-reporting.html?j=41795224&e=asifahirji@kpmg.ca&l=19249070_HTML&u=751301534&mid=10490152&jb=0&utm_medium=Email&utm_source=SFMC&utm_campaign=23Jun_EXT_ESG_ISSB%20Standards
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Appendix 6: ESG: Thought leadership and insights (continued)
Thought leadership – Environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) (continued)
Note: Click on images to visit document link.

As the severity of climate impacts 
increase, so do the socio-economic 
disruptions due to the risk and fall of 
climate impacted sectors and projects. 

This article breaks down the impact on 
institutional investors. 

The "S" in ESG is becoming critical as 
people and organizations become more 
conscious about how the social aspect of 
business will impact their future.

This article touches on the social 
movements driving business change.

This article outlines how ESG is 
impacting valuation and performance of 
the underlying companies institutional 
investors have a stake in. 

Market statistics highlight the issues 
surrounding responsible investment.
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https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2022/02/climate-human-rights-and-institutional-investors.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2022/01/s-in-esg-is-changing-business.html
https://assets.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ie/pdf/2019/10/ie-numbers-that-are-changing-the-world.pdf
https://assets.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ie/pdf/2019/10/ie-numbers-that-are-changing-the-world.pdf
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2022/02/climate-human-rights-and-institutional-investors.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2022/01/s-in-esg-is-changing-business.html
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Intentional adoption of smart, digital, 
experience-centric solutions have 
become indispensable in overcoming 
today’s challenges and aligning city 
services to the future needs and well-
being of the public. We invite you to 
explore this report on KPMG’s global 
research and insights on The future of 
local government.

KPMG’s Climate Change Financial Reporting Resource Centre
KPMG’s climate change resource centre provides FAQs to help you identify 

the potential financial statement impacts for your business.

Click here to access KPMG’s portal.

A closer look at the GHG Protocol
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (CPA Canada) and the Institute for 

Sustainable Finance (ISF) produced a 23-page report (click here) on the GHG Protocol. 
The report looks to inform potential preparers and users of emissions disclosure; policy 

makers; standard setters; regulators; and others, and to spur important additional 
research into key aspects of emissions disclosure and standards that require closer 

attention.

Appendix 6: Thought leadership and insights (continued)
Thought leadership – Environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) (continued)
Note: Click on images to visit document link.

The Green City outlines the need of the 
cities and the buildings in them to reflect 
climate consciousness. 

The link provides guidance on what that 
looks like and the first steps to meeting 
those objectives. 
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https://kpmg.com/xx/en/home/insights/2021/11/the-future-of-cities.html
https://kpmg.com/xx/en/home/insights/2021/11/the-future-of-cities.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2021/06/climatechange-financial-reporting-resource-centre.html
https://www.cpacanada.ca/en/business-and-accounting-resources/other-general-business-topics/sustainability/publications/closer-look-ghg-protocol
https://assets.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/uk/pdf/2022/02/voice-of-places-the-green-city.pdf
https://assets.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/uk/pdf/2022/02/voice-of-places-the-green-city.pdf
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Capital Regional Hospital District (CRHD) APPENDIX C 
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Year ended: December 31, 2023 

CRHD Other Financial Statement Analysis 

The 2023 Audited Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with 
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) Standards. Under PSAB regulations, 
governments are required to present five statements with explanatory notes. The first two 
statements are summarized in the staff report. This appendix provides a summary of the 
remaining statements. 

3. Statement of Change in Net Debt

The Statement of Change in Net Debt summarized in Table 7 is designed to explain the difference 
between the CRHD’s annual surplus reported on the Statement of Operations and the change in 
net debt. 

Table 7 – Change in Net Debt Year over Year 

Statement of Change in Net Debt ($ millions)  2023 
2022 

Restated 
Annual Surplus 19.1 20.3 
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (0.2) (3.3) 
Revaluation of Asset Retirement Obligation (0.1) - 
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3.1 3.1 
Change in Net Debt 21.9 20.1 
Net Debt, Beginning of Year (86.8) (106.9) 
Net Debt, End of Year $(64.9) $(86.8) 

In 2023, the CRHD’s net debt position of $(86.8) million decreased by $21.9 million over 
prior year. The change in net debt in 2023 is due to an annual surplus of $19.1 million 
and the amortization of capital assets of $3.1 million. These were partially offset by the 
acquisition of tangible capital assets of $(0.2) million related to capital additions at The Summit, 
and the annual revaluation of the asset retirement obligation of $(0.1) million related to the 
future retirement of the property at 950 Kings Road. 

The annual surplus of $19.1 million resulted in a net increase in cash, investments, and 
receivables, and the repayment of long-term debt undertaken to finance CRHD and Island Health 
capital initiatives.  

4. Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows reports the sources and uses of cash during the period and Table 
8 displays the total cash flow activity by category from the statement:
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Table 8 – Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents Year over Year 

Statement of Cash Flows ($ millions)  2023 
2022 

Restated 
Operating Activities 17.7 18.9 
Capital Activities (0.2) (3.3) 
Investing Activities (15.0) (4.0) 
Financing Activities (10.9) (10.7) 
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (8.4) 0.9 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 18.6 17.7 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $10.2 $18.6 

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $(8.4) million due to cash from operating activities 
of $17.7 million, offset by the acquisition of tangible capital assets of $(0.2) million, a net 
increase in the holdings of guaranteed investment certificates of $(15.0) million and the 
repayment of long-term debt of $(10.9) million. 

5. Schedule A: Grants to District Hospitals

Schedule A summarizes the amounts raised for capital grants which are approved in the annual 
financial plan. These include equipment grants, both major and minor capital projects which are 
cash flowed over 10 years. Capital grant expenses in 2023 was $8.8 million and the value of 
projects completed during the year was $9.0 million. 

As shown in Note 7 to the financial statements, the CRHD cost shares between 30-40% of 
approved project costs on major capital projects, and the CRHD share of authorized projects at 
December 31, 2023, is $96.9 million (2022: $31.8 million). 

Appendix D provides graphical presentation of the 2023 total grants expense by facility. 
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Audited Financial Statements 
Year ended: December 31, 2023 

CRHD Financial Performance Indicators 

1. 2023 Grants to District Hospitals

In 2023, the CRHD provided $8.8 million in capital grants to hospital facilities in the district. Further to the information provided in 

the Audited Financial Statements (Note 7, Schedule A) the distribution of 2023 total grants expense is illustrated below, showing 

the relative share of total grants received by each facility during the year. Island Health non-acute facilities received $3.6 million in 

grants; $2.9 million of this is attributed to the annual minor equipment grant, which is prioritized by Island Health and distributed to 

facilities in the district. 

Island Health Non-Acute 
Facilities

Juan de Fuca Hospital

Royal Jubilee Hospital

Saanich Peninsula Hospital

Mount St. Mary Hospital

Queen Alexandra Hospital
Victoria General Hospital

Gorge Road Hospital

Lady Minto Hospital

2023 GRANTS EXPENSE



Appendix D  Page 2 

2. Debt Service Ratio Comparison 

Based on the 2022 financial results of other hospital districts on Vancouver Island and southern British Columbia displayed in the 

graph, the average debt service costs as a percentage of revenue is 56%. At 52% for 2023 and 54% for 2022, the CRHD’s debt 

service cost as a percentage of revenue is slightly below the average. The CRHD’s debt service ratio increased from the prior year 

as a result of net decreased revenue in 2022 primarily due to lower tax requisition. 

 

Current year comparison data is not yet available. 
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Capital Regional Hospital District

Comox-Strathcona Regional Hospital District

Fraser Valley Regional Hospital District

Powell River Regional Hospital District

Thompson Regional Hospital District

2023 Debt Service Ratio Comparison
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